UNITED
NATIONS E

: : Distr.
Economic and Social CENERAL
Council E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27

21 Novenber 1996
Oiginal: ENGISH

COW TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Fi fteenth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 27t h MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Monday, 18 Novemnber 1996, at 10.30 a. m

Chai rperson: M. ALSTON
CONTENTS

OPENI NG OF THE SESSI ON

STATEMENT BY THE ASSI STANT SECRETARY- GENERAL FOR HUMAN RI GHTS
ADOPTI ON OF THE AGENDA

ORGANI ZATI ON OF WWORK

RELATI ONS W TH UNI TED NATI ONS CRGANS AND OTHER TREATY BCODI ES

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Cormittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 96- 19062 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.45 a.m

OPENI NG OF THE SESSI ON

1. The CHAI RPERSON decl ared open the fifteenth session of the Committee on
Economic, Social and Cultural R ghts.

STATEMENT BY THE ASSI STANT SECRETARY- GENERAL FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

2. M. FALL (Assistant Secretary-CGeneral for Human Rights) said that the
Conmittee's current session was synbolic for a nunber of reasons, first of all
because it nmarked the twentieth anniversary of the entry into force of the

I nternational Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights. The Covenant
woul d certainly continue to play a vital role in upholding human rights in
future and, in that regard, the need to address the close |link between the
rights set forth therein and other human rights was becomni ng increasingly
apparent. Furthernmore, the Conmmittee had now been in existence for 10 years
and was to be commended on its approach and achi evenents, particularly in view
of the sonewhat unfavourable climate in which its activities had begun. Last
but not | east, the agenda for the current session addressed a number of

i mportant matters, including the drafting of an optional protocol that would
fill a notable gap by enabling persons claining to be victins of violations to
subm t individual comrunications to the Cormittee, a practice already applied
under other human rights instruments.

3. At its nost recent session, the Econom c and Soci al Council had followed
up on the issue of the Committee's status, terns of reference and powers
vis-a-vis those of other human rights treaty bodies. As a result, the
Secretary- General had prepared a well-docunented report that exam ned the
Conmmittee's particular status and focused on ways and nmeans of aligning it
with that of other conmittees, in accord with the principles laid dow in the
Vi enna Decl arati on and Programme of Action. The report, which was currently
before the Third Committee of the General Assenbly, indicated that there were
essentially two options: either to draft a suitable protocol or to amend the
Covenant itself. The Secretary-General favoured the latter option, in the

i nterests of speed and efficiency. He hoped that the Committee woul d give the
matter further consideration on the basis of the Secretary-Ceneral's report
and nake appropriate proposals in that regard, for the aimwas to give the
Committee the same standing as the other bodies nonitoring human rights
instruments as soon as possible and he feared that the drafting of a protoco
m ght prove too tine-consuning.

4. Attention should be drawmn to the first nmeeting of the intergovernmental
group of experts set up by the Conmm ssion on Human Rights to el aborate a
strategy for the inplenentation and pronotion of the right to devel opnent. He
hoped that during the current session the Committee would | ook into how it

m ght contribute to the work of that Wrking Goup, for instance by sending a
representative to a forthcomng nmeeting to present the Committee's views. It
shoul d al so be renenbered that 1998 - the year designated by the Wrld
Conference on Human Rights to assess inplenentation of the Vienna Declaration
and Programre of Action - was drawi ng ever nearer. The Committee mi ght



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 3

therefore wish to undertake a critical analysis of matters within its sphere
of conpetence, with a viewto playing an active role in that assessnent
exer ci se.

5. He paid a tribute to the efforts of intergovernnental and

non- gover nment al organi zations in inplenmenting econonic, social and cultura
rights, and noted with satisfaction the attendance at the Conmttee' s session
of representatives from specialized agencies and financial institutions. He
al so wel coned strengthened cooperation w th non-governnental organizations
(NGCs) and wi shed to stress the value of closer links with those organi zations
active in the field of devel opnent, as borne out by joint NGO neetings held
during recent sessions of the Commi ssion on Human Rights. O her NGO
initiatives such as the organi zation of a seminar on econom c, social and
cultural rights, had served to create greater awareness on the subject and
were therefore worthy of praise. He was confident that with such on-going
cooperation the Comrittee woul d continue to nake good progress in its work.

6. In conclusion, he paid a tribute to those nenbers of the Conmmittee whose
terns of office expired at the end of the current session. He was sure that
their efforts directed towards the inplenentation of economc, social and
cultural rights would be pursued el sewhere

7. The CHAI RPERSON expressed the firm hope that the Conmittee's

achi evenents during the current session would even exceed the expectations of
t he Assistant Secretary-Ceneral for Hunan Rights. He wi shed to thank the
Assi stant Secretary-Ceneral and the Centre for Human Rights for the support
given to the Conmittee in its activities.

8. M. ALVAREZ VITA said that the statenent of the Assistant

Secretary- General for Human Ri ghts woul d provi de encouragenent not only for
the nmenbers of the Commttee but al so for those representatives of specialized
agenci es and NGOs attending the neeting. He assured the Assistant
Secretary-Ceneral that, notw thstanding the expiry of his termof office, he
woul d continue to strive for the realization of econonic, social and cultura
rights. Lastly, he drew attention to the fact that 4 Decenber would nmark the
tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Declaration on the Right to

Devel opnent .

9. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO wel cormred t he enphasis placed by the Assistant
Secretary-Ceneral on the link between the work of the Conmittee and the right
to devel opnment. In that regard, it was worth noting that she and

M. Alvarez Vita had delivered reports at a semnar held recently in Madrid on
t he subject of cooperation in the areas of devel opnent and human rights.

10. M. TEXIER said he would wel come nore information regardi ng the possible
anmendnment of the Covenant, a matter that should be pursued by the Conmittee
during the current session.

11. M. FALL (Assistant Secretary-Ceneral for Human Rights) took note of the
commrents by M. Alvarez Vita, Ms. Jiménez Butraguefio and M. Texier. He
added that, follow ng his discussions with the head of the Department for
Pol i cy Coordi nati on and Sust ai nabl e Devel opnent on cooperati on between bodies



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 4

concerned with social devel opnent and those concerned with human rights, the
future director of the department responsible for social devel opnment woul d pay
the Conmittee a visit to see how such cooperation could be inplenented.

ADOPTI ON OF THE AGENDA (agenda item 1) (E/ C 12/1996/ 3)

12. The agenda was adopt ed.

ORGANI ZATI ON OF WORK (agenda item2) (E/ C. 12/1996/L. 2)

13. M. TEXIER, referring to the draft programre of work (E/ C 12/1996/L.2),
said that he woul d be absent for nost of the second week of the session, and

some anendnents to the proposed schedule, in particular concerning the review
of the inplementation of the Covenant in Honduras, might prove necessary.

14. The CHAI RPERSON said he took it that the Conmittee wi shed to adopt the
draft programme of work, subject to any minor anendnments that m ght be
required.

15. It was so decided.

RELATI ONS W TH UNI TED NATI ONS ORGANS AND OTHER TREATY BCDI ES (agenda item 7)
16. The CHAI RPERSON noted that, since the Conmmittee's previous session, two
worl d conferences on issues relevant to the Conmittee's work had taken pl ace.

The United Nations Conference on Human Settlenments (Habitat 11) had endorsed
the right of all to adequate housing, the only dissenting voice being that of

the United States. |t had, noreover, outlined action that should be taken by
Covernnents, in accordance with an analysis that mrrored the Cormittee' s own
conments. |In addition, the Wrld Food Sunmmit had affirned in its Declaration

the right of everyone to have access to safe and nutritious food consistent
with the right to adequate food and the fundanental right of everyone to be
free fromhunger. The Summit's Plan of Action contained two particularly

i mportant provisions. The first - that every State should set up a nonitoring
nmechani sm on hunger - would transformthe Conmittee's work, since it could
turn for information directly to the Governnents involved. Secondly, the Plan
of Action called on all concerned to define “adequate food” and to work
towards inplementing that right. |In what anpbunted to a nandate for the
Conmittee, it invited treaty bodies, the specialized agencies, the High
Conmi ssi oner for Human Rights and ot her organi zations to give serious

consi deration to the issue, with a view to issuing voluntary guidelines.

17. The Conmittee could be proud of its influence, whether direct or
indirect, on the outcome of both conferences, especially considering the fact
that the right to adequate food had been endorsed by all - with the exception

of the United States of America. That country's view that the right to
adequat e food shoul d be regarded sinply as a “goal or aspiration” should be
seen in perspective: not only was it the only country to adopt that position
but it had done so under what he believed to be the fundanental m sconception
that such a provision gave rise to an internatonal obligation for rich
countries to feed poor ones. It could be argued that there should be such an
obligation - he hinmself would favour it - but neither the Conmittee nor any
other treaty body had ever pressed for it.



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 5

18. Turning to other recent devel opments, he noted that the new Constitution
of South Africa contained a | engthy set of provisions concerning econom c,
social and cultural rights, on which the Government mnade inportant

conmmtnents. He also wished to draw the Conmittee's attention to the

seventh nmeeting of persons chairing the human rights treaty bodies, held

in Septenber. Anobng those addressing the neeting had been the officer
responsi bl e for docunents control in the Conference Services Division, who had
said that in future the five CGeneva-based treaty bodies would be Iimted

to 3,000 pages of translated docunents a year. |If that allocation was divided
anong the treaty bodies in proportion to the nunber of neetings each held, the
Conmittee's reduced share woul d nmean that State party reports would have to be
restricted to 40 pages in length. He had not been satisfied by the
docunentation put forward in support of the decision, which seemed to him
arbitrary. He intended eventually to propose elininating the current type of
report and replacing it by reports on specific issues to be determ ned by
wor ki ng groups, but no changes could conme in the imediate future. A
simlarly strange situation applied to the fornmal insistence on equality
between the United Nations |anguages at a tine when ever nore limted
resources were available for interpretation and translation, with the result
that work woul d increasingly have to be based on texts in a single |anguage.

19. The chai rpersons' neeting had been inforned about a special package
prepared by the H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights for the Conmittee on the

Ri ghts of the Child, which had requested an addition of $1.5 mllion to its
budget. The chai rpersons had supported that “plan of action”, but had seen
the risk of a radical inbalance energi ng between the resources available to
the Conmittee on the Rights of the Child and those available to the other
treaty bodies. Assurances had been given that there would be a flow on effect
fromthe pilot programe, which m ght subsequently be applied in relation to
other treaty bodies, but there renmained the risk of inbal ance.

20. The Conmittee could with advantage fornul ate a programe of action of
its owmn. He was pleased to note that the Centre for Human R ghts was becom ng
nore responsi ve and open, although financial resources were still limted.
Above all, the Centre seened to have acknow edged that econonic rights had
tended to be neglected in its advisory services programe and, at the
Conmittee's insistence, had taken steps to inprove the situation

21. The persons chairing the human rights treaty bodi es had agreed that the
flow of information to Conmittees was inadequate and that the Centre for Human
Ri ghts was not transparent enough. The chairpersons had to ask for virtually
all docunents of interest and had not, for exanple, been inforned beforehand
about the new arrangenments for the Cormittee on the Rights of the Child.
Similarly, they had been told little about the current restructuring of the
Centre, even though it had potentially inportant inplications for the treaty
bodies. Fromthe little the chairpersons knew, the proposed arrangenents were
unsati sfactory.

22. There had been di scussion of revising the guidelines on the human rights
of wonmen. The Chairperson of the Committee on the Elimination of Racia

Di scrimnati on had been reluctant to change the existing guidelines with
reference to gender issues but that position had not been shared by the other
chairpersons. There had al so been a request that the treaty bodi es shoul d be



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 6

nore explicit in their requests: for exanple, the Wrld Bank shoul d be
specifically invited to certain neetings, rather than sinply requested to
provide support. In that connection, he had not witten to the Wrld Bank, as
the Conmittee had requested, preferring to wait until the H gh Conm ssi oner
for Human Rights had held a second neeting with the Bank, at which econonic
and social rights mght be discussed fruitfully.

23. The chai rpersons had agreed that - as was already the case within the
Conmittee and the Conmittee on the Rights of the Child - nenbers of treaty
bodi es should, in the interests of inpartiality, refrain fromparticipating
when reports fromtheir own countries were being considered. Problens in
that respect had arisen in the Conmittee on the Elimnation of Racial
Discrimnation. It had al so been agreed that the addresses of nenbers of the
treaty bodi es should be made available to NGOs and others that m ght request
them unless individual nenbers preferred otherwi se and notified the
Secretariat accordingly.

24, It was his understanding that inpetus for the Econonic and Soci a
Council's discussion of the status of the Conmittee had cone partly fromthe
fact that some States had wanted to change the way in which its nenbers were
elected. Currently, they were elected by the Council itself, with the result
that a mapjority of States parties could not participate in the election
because they were not nmenbers of the Council. The solution would be to
institute a nmeeting of States parties, such as was held for other treaty

bodi es. Fortunately, the discussion in the Economi c and Social Council had
focused not only on the question of elections, but also on neans of ensuring
that the Comrittee enjoyed a status conpletely equal to that of the other
treaty bodies. The report requested fromthe Secretary-CGeneral on how that
could be achieved ultimately reflected the narrow | egalistic concerns of the
Ofice of the Legal Counsel, which stated that any anendrment to the Convenant
for that purpose would have to be ratified by all States parties - a
requirement that, in his view, was nost unlikely to be fulfilled given the
demandi ng and ti me-consumni ng constitutional procedures involved.

25. An alternative would be for an anendnent to be nmade that would establish
the Conmittee as the legally constituted treaty body in relation to those
States parties which ratified the amendnent and leave it in its current status
for those that did not do so. However, the Ofice of the Legal Counsel had

di smi ssed that arrangenent as not possible - although the Inter-Anerican

Conmi ssi on on Hurman Ri ghts had been operating on precisely such a dual basis
since 1970. The matter had, in any event, been referred back by the Econonmic
and Social Council to the States parties, presunably so that they coul d neet
informal ly and deci de whether to request the Council to convene a neeting of
States parties, without anending the treaty. Such a neeting mght provide

for elections - which would still have to be ratified by the Council in the
absence of an anendrment - and al so for the paynent of honoraria to nenbers of
the Conmittee that would place themon an equal footing with nenbers of other
treaty bodies, who currently received the princely sumof US$ 3,000 a year

26. The new working group on inplenentation of the right to devel opnent
nmentioned by the Assistant Secretary-General for Human Ri ghts had adopted its



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 7

report, which sinmply listed all the proposals made to date. There was nothing
of major, direct inportance for the Conmittee to consider at the current
stage, although clearly there would be in the future.

27. Further to the suggestions for the protection of economc, social and
cultural rights in the context of structural adjustnent, nade by M. Tirk,

a former Special Rapporteur of the Sub-Conmi ssion on Prevention of

Di scrimnation and Protection of Mnorities, the Conmm ssion on Hunan R ghts
had established a working group to consider draft guidelines to be taken into
account in the structural adjustnment process. The Secretary-GCGeneral had been
requested to produce a set of draft guidelines, but had been given no specific
gui dance, and had therefore subnitted a 25-page conpilation that was best

vi ewed as a background paper. The working group was due to nmeet in March 1997
and he had been requested to submit coments by 15 Novenber 1996; he had
replied that there was not sufficient tine and that he would refer the matter
to the Conmmittee. Menbers should therefore take a ook at the docunent in
guestion and deci de whether they wanted to send an official reply.

28. He wished to informthe Conmittee of the nost recent devel oprments in

the case of M. Al exandre Miuterahejuru, a former nenber of the Committee from
Rwanda, who two years previously had informed it that he had been in great
distress in a refugee canp. Earlier in 1996 M. Miterahejuru had indicated
inaletter that he was being held in prison in Kigali charged with various

of fences, including genocide; that he was one of 70,000 people inprisoned
pendi ng consi deration of their cases; that prison conditions were abysmal

that various nmenbers of his fanmily had been killed; and that his house had
been destroyed and his personal possessions stolen. Contact had been made
with the chief of field operations of the Ofice of the United Nations Hi gh
Conmi ssi oner for Refugees (UNHCR) in Rwanda, who had been very hel pful and had
arranged for M. Miterahejuru to be visited in prison. It had, however,
justifiably been pointed out that the United Nations m ssion could not request
special attention for one individual out of 70,000 persons, but that the
Conmittee itself could do so. Accordingly, on 4 Septenber he (the

Chai rperson) had witten to the President, asking for the case to be reviewd
as soon as possible and attesting to M. Miterahejuru's qualities of

integrity, honesty, goodw ||, comnpassion and conmon sense. No reply had as
yet been received. Subsequently, a letter signed by all six chairpersons of
the human rights treaty bodi es had been sent to the President of Rwanda. The
Secretariat woul d be asked to contact the United Nations mission to ascertain
whet her there were any new devel opnents. |If nothing nore had conme to |ight by
the end of the Commttee's current session, he would follow the matter up with
the President of Rwanda.

29. M. Miterahejuru's fanmily was in great difficulty and any nateria
assi stance woul d be appreciated. He hinself had sent a snall anount of noney
out of his own funds, and he invited other nenbers to do the sane.

30. At the previous session he had been asked to send a letter to the
CGovernnment of Israel requesting a response to certain information put before
the Conmittee. In reply he had received a letter fromthe Governnent

protesting that the procedures followed by the Committee were unfair and



E/ C. 12/ 1996/ SR. 27
page 8

di scrimnatory against Israel. He had therefore sent a further letter,
poi nting out that the Conmittee's action in the natter was consistent with
that taken in respect of other countries. He had received no reply.

31. Regardi ng the case of the extensive displacenent of people caused by a
devel opnent project in Uganda funded by the Wbrld Bank and the European Union
he had i nformed the Bank and t he Conmi ssion of the European Union that the
Conmittee could report on the matter to the Econom ¢ and Social Council but
would Iike to hear their views before doing so. Both institutions had
responded, the Wirld Bank stating that it believed that the European Union had
not taken the measures agreed upon in order to remedy the forced rel ocation of
the many people affected. He therefore intended to wite to the Wrld Bank
thanking it for its answer, and to the Commi ssion of the European Union,

i nquiring whether it proposed to take any action. In his view, that kind of
procedure should not be used too often, but when the Conmittee had very
detailed information giving rise to genuine concern about the inplenentation
of the Covenant, it was appropriate for it to seek clarification fromthe
parties involved. The Committee's attention would also |ater be drawn to sone
specific issues regarding followup in relation to the Philippines, Venezuel a,
| srael, Paraguay and certain other countries.

32. A letter had been received fromthe Bel gian Governnent expressing its
appreciation of the visit nmade by M. Ceausu and M. Ahned, on behal f of the
Conmittee, for a briefing on the Covenant and the Conmittee's work, and for
their help to the Governnent in the drafting of a report for the Conmittee.
The two nenbers concerned were to be congratul ated on the fine precedent
created.

33. M. Alvarez Vita and Ms. Bonoan-Dandan woul d represent the Committee at
the United Nations Popul ati on Fund (UNFPA) semi nar to be held i mediately
after the Committee's current session. Also, the person chairing the
conmittee of independent experts established under the Council of Europe's
Social Charter had indicated that she would be very pleased to attend one of
the Conmittee's future sessions to discuss matters of nutual interest. The
Manual on Human Rights Reporting was being revised and he had prepared an
up-to-date section on reporting under the International Convenant on Econonic,
Social and Cultural Rights. He would also shortly be subnmitting to the
Conmittee a report relating to the revision of the draft optional protocol

34. Lastly, he inforned nenbers that at 9.30 p.m the Cable News
Net work (CNN) woul d be showing an itemon the Conmittee's work, to be repeated
at 11.30 a.m on the follow ng day.

35. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked for information regarding the visit nade
by M. Simma and M's. Bonoan-Dandan to Hong Kong.

36. The CHAI RPERSON replied that the visit had taken place several weeks
previously. He understood that it had been very successful and trusted that
the two nmenbers concerned would brief the Conmittee when it took up the

Uni ted Ki ngdom report concerni ng Hong Kong.

The neeting rose at 12.25 p.m



